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Dr. James Richard Nolan - Do 

Thereupon, on October 22nd, 1981, at  approximatel 

1O:OO o'clock A,M., wi tness  Dr, James Richard Nolan was 

duly swornr and d i r e c t  examination w a s  begun by M r .  

Gaines, 

PARTIAL DImCT EXAMINATION OF DR. JAMES RICHARD NOLAN 

CONTINUED BY M R .  GAINES: 

Q No. I would r a t h e r  have now what physical  examination 

you made of him, 

A Right,  The phys ica l  examination was l i m i t e d  by the  

p a t i e n t ,  H e  d b w e d  hi 
presen t  dur ing t h e  e n t i r e  phys ica l  examination and taking o f  t he  

he t ak ing  of t h e  x-rays, and this i s  standard 

procedure i n  my o f f i c e ,  we l i k e  t o  have husbands and wives 

accompany t h e i r  spouseso 

Q Was she he lp fu l ?  

A Oh, yes ,  very. He  allowed h i s  wi fe  t o  undress  him f o r  

t he  phys ica l  examination, He s tood wi th  h i s  bu t tocks  a g a i n s t  

the  examining t a b l e ,  and he would not  sit down. I d i d  what I 

could on t h e  examination. He was o r i en t ed  i n  time and space,  

A l e r t  and r a t i o n a l ; ,  cooperat ive  within his own l i m i t s ,  

Now, the  p a t i e n t ' s  s t ance ,  I wrote and I s t i l l  say  i t ,  

was wi ld ly  abnormal, 

doctor  t o  pu t  down. 

term desc r ibes  t he  back as arched backward as far as i t  would be 

poss ib l e  t o  move i t  back, backwards, as f a r  as poss ib l e ,  Tha t ' s  

That ' s  a r a t h e r  s t rong  express ion f o r  a 

He s t a n d s  w i t h  an opisthotonos. The medical 

4 
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what t h a t  word memg; It's a very s t rong word used f o r  a.vsry 

s p e c i a l  s i t u a t i o n .  That is, and I am saying t h e  same th ing  i n  I 
d i f f e r e n t  words, extreme hyperextension. J$yper, more than you'd 

expect normally, Extension, bending backward of t h e  e n t i r e  t o r s o  

and t h e  apex of t h e  curve at approximately L1, When he was 

arche& backward, t h e  deepes t  p a r t  would be about t h e  l e v e l  where 

you>:"orrear t h e  be l t ,  lumbar 1 vertebra.  The muscles are r i g i d l y  

i n  spasm, and 1 d i d  n o t  see them relax a t  any time during t h e  

examination, nor when he l e f t  the o f f i c e  and sat down i n  t h e  

passenger seat o f  t h e  automobile. Even then,  h i s  back muscles 

d i d  n o t  r e l a x ,  and he maintained the  opisthotonos. 

Q You used t h e  words Itin spasm", r;'Jould you p lease  exp1ki.n 

t ha t  f o r  us? 

A Yes. A t  a l l  t imes when a human is  a l i v e ,  the  muscles 

have a c e r t a i n  t ens ion  which i s  c a l l e d  tonus, a l l  r i g h t ,  Only 

when he i s  dead i s  t h e r e  no tens ion ,  no t o n u s  a t  all. Even when 

he i s  unconscious o r  as leep ,  the re  i s  a c e r t a i n  tonus, When you 

a r e  awake, t h e r e  i s  a l i t t l e  more tonus, Example i s  an involun- 

ta ry  con t rac t ion  o f  the  muscle, tha t ' s  all. It may be very 

b r i e f ,  It  may be q u i t e  prolonged. 

Q 
over i t ?  

A Yes, sir, 

Q 

You said i t  w a s  involuntary.  That  means he h a s  no contro 

What i s  i t  betoken t o  you, what does i t  mean t o  you as a 

physician? 
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Q 
A 

No s i n g l e  thfngl  

What about  underlying i n  jury?  

His underlying i n j u r y  could be anything from wi th in  his 

m,nd t o  h i s  muscles, h i s  nerves,  j o i n t s  adjacent ,  bones adjacent ,  

all, these t h i n g s  can g ive  muscle spasm, 

Q You use the word What's the  s i g n i f i c a n c e  of 

A Only t h a t  I never saw him at  any time when he was being 

examined by m e ,  coming o r  going t o  be examined by me, never saw 

h i m  a b l e  t o  bend forward o r  a t  least  bend forward o r  r e l a x ,  

Q Go ahead, 

A I n  t h e  ga i t ,  means how he walks, t h e ' g a t i e n t  walked w i t h  

a cane, sometimes holding i t - i n  t h e  r i g h t ,  sometimes i n  t h e  l e f t ,  

Sometimes he can walk without the  cane and g a i t  was n a t u r a l l y  ve r j  

s t i f f .  

Then, I descr ibed h i s  s k u l l  and face  and found nothing 

wrong, If 1 am moving a l i t t l e  fast,  s t o p  me, 

In  the  eyes  I found no th ing  wrongp N o r m a l  normal 

motion, This  i s  no t  t o  say he has normal vis ion.  I do not  check 

t h e  a c t u a l  v i s i o n ,  only how t h e  muscles and nerves t o  the  eyes 

work , 

I n  the  e a r s ,  t h e r e  w a s  no apparent inflammation, and the  

hearing was apparent ly  normal. 

I n  the  mouth, I found nothing t e r r i b l y  abnormal, except  

t e e t h  weren ' t  i n  the  very b e s t  o f  condi t ion,  Tongue a l i t t l e  
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coated from smoking, The vo ice  was normal.. 

I n  t h e  neck, t h e  f ron t  of  the  neck was normal, The 

thyro id  gland. was palpable ,  No p a r t i c u l a r  lymph nodes, however, 

i n  back the p a t i e n t  -- bending forward o r  f l ex ion  w a s  accomplish€ 

only a few degrees, I estimated a b o u t 1 5 ,  causing pa in  i n  t he  

whole back, this would, and then,  t he re  was a p o s i t i v e  meningeal 

t ug  there .  All r i g h t ,  now, what's a meningeal tug? When you a n d  

I bend our  heads forward, no th ing  h u r t s  i n  back, anywhere i n  

back, I f  you bent  your neck forward t h a t  i s  descr ibed as a 

meningeal tug,  The meninges a r e  the covering o f  the  s p i n a l  cord 

so  you are a l i t t  t familiar 

inflammation of a meninges i s  a meningit is ,  It shouldn ' t  h u r t  

t o  pu t  your head down, bu t  i n  his case i t  did, L e f t  and r i gh t  

r o t a t i o n  were apparen t ly  normal and pain  f r ee ,  He could t u r n  t o  

the  l e f t  and r i g h t  and i t  d i d n ' t  hurt .  Lef t  and r i g h t  normal 

bending, bending t o  the  l e f t  and bending t o  the  r igh t .  Well, 

the  p a t i e n t  wouldn't do i t ,  and t h a t  was t h a t ,  I d i d n ' t  argue 

about i t .  The man was uncomfortable, and I was doing everything 

I could t o  g e t  an examination without adding t o  his problems o r  

pain  e 

Now, i n  t h e  upper ex t r emi t i e s ,  the p a t i e n t  could abduct 

h i s  arms, r a i s e  them from his s i d e s  only t o  90 degrees,  T h a t ' s  

about l e v e l  wi th  t he  shoulder,  and then s a i d  he couldn ' t  go any 

higher ,  A s  a matter of f a c t ,  he couldo 1'11 f i n i s h  t h a t  i n  a 

minute, t h a t  thought, Flexion,  br inging the shoulders  and the  
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arms up i n  f r o n t  of  him was only t o  30 degrees, That 

about halfway up as high as the  shoulders,  and he sai 

do i t ,  because his back h u r t ,  A s  a matter of  f a c t ,  he can, 

While he was being dressed and undressed, he abducted his arms 

higher  and flexed h i s  arms higher ,  and I was there i n  t h e  room, 

so t h a t ' s  that, The motions of  the  elbows and hands were normal, 

n o t  l imi ted  i n  any way. 

no trembling,  Good coordinat ion,  Sensation was normal, The 

deep tendon ref lexes  were tested,  Tha t ' s  just tapping a tendon, 

For example, watching the muscle jerk. Tha t r& a normal t 

The po in t  i s  tendons were normal, 

The +hands showed no tremor; There was 

I went on t o  his chest .  It was symmetrical, no deformity 

there ,  When he took a -- when he breathed deep, the ches t  

expansion was fou r  cen t imeters ,  and t h a t ' s  about one-and-a-half 

i nches  and i s  q u i t e  normal, a l l  r i g h t ,  However, deep breathing 

he says gave him back pain ,  and the  e n t i r e  back from the  neck, 

t he  t ho rac i c  a r e a  -- you are going t o  hear t h a t  i n  t h e  fu tu re ,  

Thorax i s  t h e  bony ches t ,  and the  thorac ic  a rea  of t h e  sp ine  i s  

t h a t  area between the  shoulder  blades  and a l i t t l e  lower t h a t  

has r i b s  on i t .  There a r e  twelve such vertebrae,  t ho rac i c  verteb: 

and a l s o  on the lumbar sp ine ,  You heard t h a t  one, you a r e  

familiar wi th  i t ,  I t ' s  below t h e  thorac ic ,  okay, 

I n  the  abdomen, well, he was very t h i n  and I had t o  

examine him s tanding  up and about all I could say i s  1 found no 

evidence of he rn i a o I t ' s  no t  a very good examination o f  an 
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abdomen, 

Exte rna l  g e n i t a l i a ,  only determine t h a t  e x t e r n a l l y  seemed 

t o  be normal, a d u l t  male. A r e c t a l  examination i s  p a r t  of a good 

thorough examination of a d u l t  male, and I do i t  r o u t i n e l y ,  

w a 8  n o t  done i n  this case  because I don ' t  th ink the  p a t i e n t  would 

a l l o a  i t ,  1 didn't; even ask him. He couldn' t  bend over. A l l  

r i g h t  

It 

I n  t h e  back, when the  p a t i e n t  s tands ,  he has this hyper- 

extension,  bending backward, He  was not  ab le  o r  would no t ,  e i t h e  

one, bend h i s  back i n  any d i r e c t i o n ,  That  was i t .  I w a s  unable 

English,  but i t ' s  n o t  a familiar 

word, That means on the  b e l l y ;  nor  on supine, t h a t ' s  Engl ish ,  

bu t  i t ' s  n o t  a common word, That means on the  back, 

He went i n t o  t h e  x-ray room, h i s  wife and my x-ray 

technic ian ,  and we t r i e d  t o  g e t  h i m  t o  l i e  on the table ,  and I 

th ink  he cooperated t o  t he  b e s t  of  h i s  own a b i l i t y  a t  the  time, 

He would l i e  on h i s  s i d e ,  bu t  would no t  t r y  t o  l i e  on h i s  back 

nor  h i s  abdomen, We d i d n ' t  ask him to.  Two x- rays were taken 

o f  t h e  t ho rac i c  ver tebrae .  Those a re  t h e  ones wi th  r i b s  on them, 

and the  lumbar ver tebrae ,  and they a r e  no t  o f  a q u a l i t y  T i n s i s t  

i n  my o f f i c e ,  b u t  the re  i s  some information capable o f  being 

received from them. You can t e l l  t h a t  he has twelve t h o r a c i c  

ver tebrae ,  t h a t ' s  the  normal number, usual  number, and s i x  lumbar 

ver tebrae ,  which is  an anomaly, and t h a t  he has s i x  lumbar d i s k s ,  

This  I could t e l l ,  Let  m e  see  i f  t he re  i s  anything e l s e  I could 
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an o i l  substance ca l led  Pantopaque. 

sometimes i s  now used i n  doing myelograms. 

evidence of f r a c t u r e s .  I d i d  s ee  t h a t  the  spinous processes ,  

those  a r e  t h e  p i e c e s  of bone t ha t  s t i c k  ou t  from the ver tebrae  i n  

back s o  t h a t  you can f ee l  them under t he  skin,  s t i c k  s t r a i g h t  o u t  

Both L5 and L6 were absent.  More than that ,  I could n o t  see t h t  

I was able t 

That ' s  what was used and 

I f e l t  there  was no 

the  x-rays tha t  I 8 a w  i n  my o f f i c e ,  and this was t h e  e x t e n t  of 

t h e  h i s t o r y  and the  phys ica l  examination i n  my o f f i c e ,  

Q 
f i e d  t h i s  ske l e ton .  

A Yes, i t  would, I t h i n k  i t  wouldr 

Doctor, would t h i s  be he lp fu l  t o  the  Jury i f  w e  i d e n t i -  

(Thereuponl P l a i n t i f f ' s  Exhibi t  H w a s  marked f o r  

i d e n t i f i c a t i o n .  ) 

Q I hand you what f o r  purposes of i d e n t i f i c a t i o n ,  Doctor, 

has been marked P l a i n t i f f ' s  Exhib i t  H, and can you t e l l  u s  what 

t h a t  s imu la t e s  o r  pu rpo r t s  t o  be? 

than I, and expla in  t o  t h e  Jury,  i f  you will please ,  what a r e  

some o f  the  terms t o  which you were r e f e r r i n g  i n  your examination 

A 

i t ' s  of what ' s  considered a normal human ver tebrae ,  

seven i n  the  neck, twelve t h a t  have r i b s  on them, and that's 

c a l l e d  t he  t ho rac i c  spine.  I t  would be between t h e  shoulder  

You doctors  would know b e t t e r  

This  i s  a p l a s t i c  modelr I t 's  a commercial model, and 

There a r e  

blades ,  

have r i b s ,  

And t h e r e  a r e  here  f i v e  lumbar ver tebrae  t h a t  do n o t  

The r i b s  have been removed. Below t h a t  i s  a sacrum 

on 
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which i s  f i v e  v e r t e b r a e  f together  and a l i t t l e  v e r t e b r a  

made of three v e r t e b r a e  f 

I n  between -- w e l l ,  first of a l l ,  what ' s  a vertebra? L e t ' s  talk 

about t h e  usua l  ve r t eb ra ,  and i n  this case,  the lumbar ve r t eb rae  

down here ( i n d i c a t i n g ) ,  and I a m  only going t o  be ab le  t o  show 

together  which is  a very good model 

you five, Actual ly ,  t h e  m ou are t a l k i n g  about today has  six,  

a l l  r i g h t .  T h i s  would be f i v e ,  fou three, two, one, one lumbar 

ve r t eb ra ,  so I am going t o  pu t  my hand here and everything below 

my hand i s  lumbar ve r t eb rae ,  Is this where you c a n  see  i t?  A l l  

r i g h t ,  Now, i n  between -- well, first of all -- t h e  v e r t e b r a  i s  

a d i s k  of  bone, 

might c a l l  i t  a hockey puck of  boneo A l l  r i gh t ,  here  i t  i s  i n  

between t h e  v e r t e b r a l  bodies ,  which are the  bone* and the  weight 

bear ing  s t r u c t u r e s ,  They a re  pads of tough grisKke, This i s  c a l l  

t he  i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s k ,  All r i g h t ,  It i s  no t  bone, It 

does n o t  show up on x-rays, It i s  p a r t  o f  the  spine,  The first 

lumbar sits on top  o f  the  first lumbar d i s k ,  ok , The f i f t h  

lumbar v e r t e b r a  i s  above the  f i f t h  lumbar d i s k ,  and the  sacrum 

would be below t h a t ,  A11 r i g h t ,  

, .-, 
A woman would say i t ' s  a b i scu i t  of bone, A m a n  

I n  the  case of: M r .  Pinney, t h e r e  a r e  s i x  ve r t eb rae ,  and 

the  p lace  where he had his hern ia ted  d i s k ,  according t o  t h e  

h o s p i t a l  records ,  a r e  n o t  t h e  bottom-most d i s k ,  but t h e  one 

second from t h e  bottom and i t  i s  numbered L5 i n  &is case,  All 

r i g h t  

Now, I a m  going t o  t ake  this model t h a t  has  f i v e  lumbar 



ve r t eb rae o  I a m  going t o  conver t  i t  i n t o  Mr.  P inneyts  back by I 
holding my hand up one ver tebra .  Now, we've got s ix ,  and w e  a r e  

going t o  pretend they are h i s  s i x  lumbar vertebrae,  so  h i s  disk 

was he rn i a t ed  here. 

Q I was going t o  a& you t o  descr ibe  the  components of  a 

disk, i f  there a re  component p a r t s  t o  i t ,  so t h a t  the  Jury  would 

unders tan d i e  I s .  

A A d i s k  i s  made up o f  two p a r t s ,  and remember i t ' s  tough 

s t u f f ,  You s t and  on i t ,  and i t  c a r r i e s  your weight, The o u t e r  

+ m w 

0 " 

11 p a r t  i s  c a l l e d  the  c i r c u l a r  r i ng ,  f i b rous  r ing ,  and annulus I 
f i b rosus ,  and the f i b e r s  o f  t h a t  outer covering around t h e  o u t s i d  

a re  continuous with t he  f i b e r s  i n  the bone, Bone i s  a f i b r o u s  

t i s s u e  which has calcium depos i ted  i n  i t ,  All r igh t .  There has  

been, f o r  your informat ion,  no c l i n i c a l  h i s to ry  of any m a n  ever  

having had a s l i pped  disk.  The bone will break first. There i s  

nothing wrrsng f o r  us ing  i t  f o r  a s lang expression, 

Now, i n s i d e  of t he  f i b r o u s  r i n g  there  i s  something which 

i s  c a l l e d  the pulpy nucleus,  and t h a t  makes you t h i n k  i t ' s  s o f t ,  

It  i s n ' t .  It's extremely tough s t u f f ,  It is  i n  a random p a t t e r n ,  

Q Sometimes I have the  nucleus pulposus, Is t h a t  the same 

th ing  you are taUring about? 

A I w a s  p u t t i n g  i t  i n  English. 

Q Tha t ' s  t h e  same th ing  then? 

1 think nuc leus  pulposus i s  the  name, as nucleus  pulposus /I A 
j I i n t e n d  i t  t o  be. 

-- II- 
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A l l  r i g h t ,  Now, i f  a disk pushes ou t  and herniates, i t  

means you have t o  have a break, a gap, a hole i n  t h e  f i b r o u s  r i n g  

annulus f i b rosus ,  and t h e  i n s i d e  s q u i r t s  out  l i k e  too thpas te  o u t  

of a tube,  something pushes through. A hern ia  is  something 

coming through a hole  i n  a wall, A he rn i a  i n  your b e l l y  is  a 

hole  i n  the ab'domen w%th i n t e s t i n a l  con ten ts  coming through, 

All r i g h t .  Now, i f  i t  pushes o u t  forward, t he re  is no t  much i n  

f r o n t  of  t h i s  except  muscles and veins,  and I a m  overs impl i fying 

i t ,  of course. We are no t  t h a t  simply b u i l t ,  but  i t  doesn ' t  

seem t o  bo ther  u s  much, It can even push up t o  the  bone above. 

I n  t h a t  case  you c n ' t  seem t o  bother  

I f  i t  pushes o u t  i n  back, now -- from the bra in  the  spinal. cord 

come6 down and r u n s  behind the  bodies  of t h e  ver tebrae  and throug 

a tunnel ,  and t h i s  tunne l  i s  covered by the laminae or t h e  roof ,  

The tunnel  i s  c a l l e d  the  s p i n a l  canal ,  All r i g h t .  

Nowt i n  t h e  case  of t h e  man with six lumbar ver tebrae ,  

s o  I don ' t  miscount, s i x ,  f i v e ,  four,  th ree ,  two, one, here ,  If 

he had a d i s k ,  i n s i d e  of t h i s  d i s k  pushes out  i n  back, i t  would 

p r e s s  on the  s p i n a l  cord which runs  back o f  the body of  the 

ve r t eb ra ,  That  would be i n  here, and i t  would l i e  where t he  t i p  

of my f i n g e r  i s  and wouLd p r e s s  on t h e  sp ina l  cord and the  nerve 

r o o t  a t  t h a t  l e v e l ,  and t h a t  l e v e l  i n  t h i s  case would be L5, and 

I ' v e  g o t  my f i n g e r  on t h e  r i g h t  s i de ,  would be a midl ine ,  would 

be on the l e f t ,  t h a t ' s  t h e  back, I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  a b a s i c  thing.  

Is t h e r e  anything more you want? 
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Q No, resume. You've e x p l a b e d  p r e t t y  well ,  the  arrangement 

of  disk and v e r t e b r a ,  

YOU can proceed wi th  your r e c i t a l .  

A 

M r ,  Gaines, 

Q 

That 's  what I wanted the  Jury t o  knowo 

I had f i n i s h e d  t e l l i n g  you of  my physical  examination, 

Doctor, d i d  you have occasion t o  view a number o f  x- rays 

which had been taken i n  t h e  var ious  hospitals t o  which he had 

been admitted? 

A Yes, sir, 

Q 
as Ashtabula General Hospi 

think i n  March of 1977, and among the x-rays which were taken at 

that time and which I take i t  you had occasion t o  review, d i d  

And among them, his first h o s p i t a l i z a t i o n  you r e f e r r e d  t o  

and this occurred on -- and 1 

you? 

A I d.id,  

Q 
study. 

o r  myelographic s t u d i e s .  

A 

doesn ' t  make t h e  p a t i e n t  any b e t t e r ,  

the  doctor  smarter.  

f l o a t e d  -- you have t o  i n j e c t  i t  w i t h  a needle -- i n  t h e  f l u i d  

which l i e s  between the  coverings o f  the sp ina l  co rd ,  n o t  i n  the  

spinal cord, between the  coverings of  the  s p i n a l  cord where the 

normal s p i n a l  f l u i d  is, 

There were some which were made pursuant t o  a myelographi 

I think you s a i d  you had wr i t t en  a t r a c t  on myelograms 

What's a myelogram? 

A myelogram i s  an x-rays and i t  i s  a d iagnos t i c  s tudy,  

It makes the p a t i e n t  and 

An opaque substance,  i n  t h i s  case  an o i l ,  i s  

The f l u i d  i s  heavier than t h e  -0 the  o i l  
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i s  heav ie r  than t h e  s p i n a l  f l u i d ,  If you place the  m a n  on an 

x-ray t a b l e  so t h a t  you can both look through a fluoroscope, and 

when you want t o  t ake  x-ray p i c t u r e s  and t i p  the t a b l e  so t h a t  

he i s  almost s t and ing  up, the  o i l  will s l i d e  downward -- i t * s  

heavier  than t h e  water -0 towards t h e  tail bone. I f  you t i p  the  

table so  t h a t  his head is downward, the  o i l  w i l l  s l i d e  downhill 

again,  but  towards t h e  t h o r a c i c  ver tebrae ,  higher up towards his 

neck, so  you can a c t u a l l y  watch with the  fluoroscope t h i s  o i l  

moving up and down h i s  back as you t i p  the table.  Now, you can 

see  the  o i l  and you can s e e  the  bones, but  you c a n ' t  s ee  the  

s p i n a l  cord and you c a n ' t  s e e  disks. They a r e  s o f t  t i s s u e s  

that  don ' t  show up, bu t  i f  you see  the  o i l  come down and go 

around something l i k e  t h i s  ( i n d i c a t i n g ) ,  there  is a ve r t eb ra ,  

come down and go around something, you can ' t  see what i t f s  going 

around, but  you know t h a t  t h e r e  is a lump of something t h e r e  

t h a t ' s  tak ing  up space,  and t h e  r a d i o l o g i s t ,  i f  he i s  a p u r i s t ,  

says, 'I1 see  a space occupying lesion.11 

Q Doctor, I hand you -- 
TKE COURT: What d i d  we  say 

we were going t o  mark these,  C , m b  l? Are these  Ashtabul 

General Hospi ta l?  

TM;: WITRESS : T h a t ' s  a myelogram, 

Q Those a r e  the  myelogram films? 

A Yeah. There are o t h e r  x- rays here taken i n  t h a t  h o s p i t a l  

but  those are the  myelogram f i l m s .  
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Q Apparently, t h e r e  is ber  m d  date on t h i s .  ‘,phis is 

made a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  t h e  f i l m  i s  performed? 

A Yes, siro 

Q Z see. 

THE COURT: All r i g h t ,  L e t t s  

m a r k  these, 

(Thereupon, P l a i n t i f f ’ s  Exhib i t s  C sub I. t hough  

C sub ‘7 were marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n , )  

Q Doctor, I hand you f o r  purposes of  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  what 

have been marked as C sub 1 through 7. I think you he re to fo re  

i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  these  were f i l m s ,  x-rays 

at t h e  time of a myelogram t h a t  was taken at  Ashtabula General 

Hospi ta l  as of  3-21-77, W a v%ew box he lp  you t o  expla in  

t o  the  Jury  what i f  anything you see  i n  those? 

A A view box i s  necessary.  I am going t o  put  t h i s  up and 

see  what I can  see  there .  M a y  I bring t h a t  up a l i t t l e  c l o s e r ?  

I think t h e  l i m i t  i s  going t o  be the e l e c t r i c  cord, 

THE COURT: Well, t h e r e  i s  

another  plug r i g h t  under the  jury boxp 

I@, Scharon, t h e r e  i s  another plug r i g h t  down 

t h e r e  underneath the ju ry  box. 

C a n  the  a t t o r n e y s  see? If n o t ,  you can s t e p  back 

t o  a position where you can. 

THE WITNEXS: I have seven films. 

These were a11 taken the  same day on the da te  3-21-77, 



and they are a lumbar: mysl&gram, which we've &reads 

discussed, I think, Now, what you are  seeing here i s  

somewhat dark, and i t ' s  o f t en t imes , the  way, and the re  i s  

no reason why 1 should pick the  first f i l m ,  The r i g h t  i E  

on the r i g h t  and i s  marked with an R, There are two 

pictures herer 

THE COURT: 

now r e f e r r i n g  t o ,  Doctor? 

TKE WITMESS: 

Which one a r e  you 

Yes, sir, This 

happens t o  be sub t i t l e  6, P l a i n t i f f ' s  C, sub t i t l e  6, 

There i s  two p i c t u r e s  on the f i l m ,  The r i g h t  i s  

marked with an R. TMs 

i s  the  s o l i d  bone, i s  the  sacrumo Above i t ,  t h a t  was up, 

You a r e  looking a t  a man's back. 

The head would be a t  the  t o p  of  the f i l m ,  His lumbar 

ve r t eb ra  s i x ,  The dark a rea  i s  lumbar i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  

d i s k  f i v e ,  and t h i s  would be above i t ,  lumbar L5, and 

t h i s  would be i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s k  four, above i t ,  You 

see  a mass o f  o i l  which l o o k s  l i k e  a white s t r e a k  t o  you, 

and you see the ghos ts  of l i t t l e  pieces  o f  the  o i l  coming 

out  l e f t  and. r i g h t  a t  the  l e v e l  o f  four, and l e f t  and 

r i g h t  a t  the  l e v e l  of f ive.  Those a re  -- t h a t ' s  oil goin, 

i n  the nerve region, I t ts  a normal shadow, Over here -- 
you a r e  going t o  g e t  familiar with i t  as I move, so I ' l l  

move a l i t t l e  more b r i e f l y  -- you hava nerve r o o t s  a t  



four  and at\ f i v e ,  

a r e a  going down p a s t  t h e  s i x t h  disk andL-just  appearing 

The o i l  from a myelogram and t h e  lumba 

t o  touch the  sacrum, 

Now, this i s  a P l a i n t i f f t s  Exhibi t  C sub t i t l e  

7. 

t o  s t and  i t  up so  you don't  g e t  confused, 

taken Ni th  t h e  pat ient :  l y i n g  on his b e l l y  l i k e  t h a t ,  

Here i s  t h e  sacrum, t h e  but tocks,  the lumbar spine ,  The 

head would be up here,  

It's a myelogram from the  same date ,  and I a m  going 

It's a c t u a l l y  

All r i g h t ,  I a m  s tanding i t  up 

because you' are used t o  seeing this. 

I showed you was with the  p a t i e n t  standing up. 

is  very c l e a r ,  Some of these a r e  not ,  Here i s  the  o i l ,  

This happens t o  be a p iece  of  needle i n ,  and I should 

The last  myelogram 

?Tow, t h i s  

say t h e  needle  t h a t  t h e  o i l  is put i n ,  and they will take 

some o i l  out  l a t e r .  T h i s  i s  the sacrum. It  looks l i k e  

t h e r e  i s  no bone the re ,  tha-t i s  the s i x t h  i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  

dsik, Here i s  the  s i x t h  lumbar vertebra.  Above i t  i s  

the  f i f t h  i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i sk ,  and something i s  taking  

up space r i g h t  i n  t h e r e  a t  the l e v e l  of  f i v e ,  and  t h e r e ' s  

a much l e s s  bulge of the  disk,  a much smaller  space 

occupying l e s i o n  a t  the  l e v e l  o f  s ix .  I'Jhat about the  

l e v e l  o f  four  d i s k ?  ?/el l ,  i t ' s  hard t o  say. The o i l  

doesn ' t  go t ha t  far, b u t  t h i s  i s  what t h e  r a d i o l o g i s t ,  

x-ray s p e c i a l i s t  i n t e r p r e t e d  8s showing a f i l l i n g  de fec t  

i n  he rn ia ted  d i s k  a t  the  l e v e l  o f  L5* Please, n o t i c e  t h i E  

. .  
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Q 

is  i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s k  L5. No reason t o  pu t  two numbers 

on it. That ' s  confusing. There is i n  t h i s  case an L6, 

Now, I a m  going t o  move through t h i s  and see i f  

t h e r e  i s  anything e l se  of s ign i f icance ,  That ' s  t he  b e s t  

p i c t u r e ,  as I remember. 1 think there  is nothing more 

t o  be shown here. That ' s  t he  most v i v i d  thingt what X 

showed you there. 

(Thereupon, the  wi tness  re turned t o  the stand.) 

GA INES : 

Doctor, d i d  you have occasion a l s o  t o  review f i l m s  t h a t  

were taken a t  Hamot Medical Center on 4-20-78, t h a t ' s  A p r i l  20th,  

19781 

A Yes, I d id .  

Q And those  f i l m s  were what? How do you descr ibe  them? 

R I am speaking from the  no te s  I made i n  my o f f i c e ,  n o t  on 

Mr, Hnney -- 
Q You m a y  refresh your r eco l l ec t ion .  

n The films taken a t  Hamot Medical Center on 4-20-78 showed 

l e f t  and r i g h t  l a t e r a l  s t r e s s  f i l m s ,  Then, films, same date,  

show f l ex ion  and extension x-rays, All r i g h t ,  That  means there  

a r e  four  p i c t u r e s ,  One of them i s  taken wi th  the p a t i e n t  bendilig 

t o  the  l e f t  as far as he can and a p i c t u r e  i s  taken, and the  

o t h e r  i s  irtith t h e  pa.tient bending t o  the r i g h t  as far as he can, 

The t h i r d  with  him bending forward as far as he can, and t he  

f o u r t h  w i t h  him bending backward as far as he can, They a r e  
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l abe led  the  s t r e s s  f i lms  and Indicated as su 

The purpose of t he  f i lms  i s  t o  show motton and 

and you want t h e  p a t i e n t  t o  move as much as possible.  I n  the  

f i l m s  where the  p a t i e n t  bent t o  the  l e f t  and r i g h t ,  I could see  a 

l i t t l e  motion above the  l e v e l  of Ll, but none below Ll. ' H e  

d idn ' t  move below L1, I n  the  f i l m s  where the p a t i e n t  was bending 

backward and forwward,or was supposed t o  bend backward and forward 

there  was no motion a t  all on the  two f i l m s .  

Q What then d i d  t h a t  t e l l  you? 

much motionJI 

I f e l t  t h a t  as of  the  date,  4-20-78, he was already r i g i d  

as far as the  lumbar spine, no motion as f a r  as bending forwtird 

and backward, 

Q 
A Yes. 

You used the words " r i g id  lumbar spine". 

9, Is tha t  cons i s ten t  wi th  what you have jus ,  s a i d ?  

n It i s  what I j u s t  s a i d .  

Q Precise ly .  Doctor, from yourexamination conducted on 

that date -- what wa8 $t, December 30th? 

A Yes, 

Q -- of ' 8 0 ,  do you have an opinion as t o  the permanency 

o r  otherwise of the  condit ion t h a t  you found i n  this man? 

A Yes. 

Q W i l l  you please  s t a t e  the  f a c t s  upon which you pred ica te  

the  grounds upon which you predicate  t h a t  opinion as t o  whatever 

i t  m a y  be as t o  permanency o r  otherwise? 

20  
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A Yes+ No man s e e s  t h e  fu tu re ,  but the  doctor  i s  asked  t o  

make a prognosis  based on his experience and what he knows about 

the  p a t i e n t ,  I n  t h i s  s p e c i f i c  case, I'm examining the  p a t i e n t  

four  y e a r s  l a t e r ,  s e v e r a l  y e a r s  l a t e r , - -  

Q Approximately. 

A -- a f t e r  his i n ju ry .  Approximately four  y e a r s  l a t e r o  He 

has been through a l o t .  I a l s o  have medical records  from the  

d i f f e r e n t  h o s p i t a l s .  I have seen x-rays. I have seen x- rays 

showing t h a t  he couldn ' t  move i n  1978, I have seen h i m  i n  my 

o f f i c e  i n  1980, when he couldn ' t  move. X do be l ieve  on a basis 

ry ,  phys ica l  examination, x-rays t o  a l e s s e r  

ex ten t  than the x-rays of o t h e r  i n s t i t u t i o n s ,  h o s p i t a l s ,  t h a t  the 

condi t ion  is permanent. 

Q 
c e r t a i n t y ?  

A Yes, sir. 

Q Doctor, do you have an opinion wi th  reasonable  medical 

c e r t a i n t y  as t o  whether o r  not  t h i s  man i s  experiencing pain? 

Have you reached tha t  conclusion with reasonable  medical 

Pa. DYSON: Objection, 

THE COURT: Overruled, You may 

answer t h e  ques t ion  

THE WITNESS: I have, 

And s t a t e  t h e  grounds upon which you have reached an 9 
opinion on t h a t ?  

R It is my profess iona l  opinion t h a t  on December -- 

21 
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Q 
t h e  opinion,  and thenl  tel2. u s  what that opinion is. Tha t t s  a 

new r u l e  t h a t ' s  been enacted, and we have t o  f o l l o w  i t .  

A 

h o s p i t a l s  o r  t h e  x-rays. 

what he does and what he says and what I see. Not every th ing  

he says is  a hundred percent  accura te ,  and I can see t h a t  t h a t f s  

t r u e ,  On the o t h e r  hand, I arn allowed t o  form an opinion,and I 

a m  r equ i red  t o  form an opinion,  how much a man h u r t s ,  I do no t  

f e e l  h i s  pain,  but  never the less ,  the  question i s  does he have 

You have t o  state the  grounds f i r s t  upon which you reach  

In this case, I don ' t  r e l y  on the records  from o t h e r  

I tdepends upon two people: H i m  and me, 

s one t h a t  i s  commonly asked, and I'm 

t o  answer it. 

(4 With reasonable  medical c e r t a i n t y ,  w h a t  i s  t h a t  opinion? 

A On December 30 th  of  1980, when I examined him, he was i n  

pain , 

Q Doctor, do you have an opinion on the basis o f  the  

examination you made and the  inqu i ry  you made as t o  whether o r  

n o t  t h i s  man, when you s a w  him on December JOth, 1980, was 

disabled  from engaging i n  g a i n f u l  employment? 

A I do, 

Q And upon what grounds do you base t h a t  opinion? 

A Again, I base i t  on a l l  of  the evidence, no t  only the  

h i s t o r y  and phys ica l  examination and x-rays i n  my o f f i c e ,  but  

also on the  comrnunications, x-rays, and h o s p i t a l  r ecords  t h a t  I 

have rece ived  and reviewedo 

22 
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Q And what i s  t h a t  opinion? 

A 

Q 
as t o  whether t h a t  d i s a b i l i t y  w i l l  continue i n  the f u t u r e ?  

On December 3Oth, 1980, I bel ieve  he was disabled ,  

VIith reasonable  medical c e r t a i n t y ,  do you have an opinior 

A I do. 

Q And on what grounds do you base t h a t  opinion? 

A Agdn,  I r e l y  considerably on the history from the  p a t i e r  

even more so on t h e  r ecords  of  his myelogram, d iagnos t i c  studieii 

surgery,  and then, my own examination, 

Q I overlooked asking you the  quest ion as t o  whether o r  not 
. - _  , 

with reasonable  medical cer taSnty  you have an opinion, w i t h  

reasonable  medical c e r t a i n t y  as t o  whether o r  not the pa in  t ha t  

you descr ibed  e x i s t e n t  on December 30th, 1980, w i l l  cont inue i n  

-the fu tu re?  

PjfR, DYSOW: Objection, 

THE COURT: Overruled, Overrulc 

You may answer. 

Do you have an opinion on t h a t ?  9 
A Yes. 

Q 
A 

i n j u r y  and my examination, on the  course as descr ibed by the  

p a t i e n t  i n  the  f o u r  yea r s  between the  time he was i n j u r e d  and thc: 

time I s a w  him, on t h e  t rea tments  he had received, 

the  primary t h i n g s  as f a r  as p ro jec t ing  i n t o  the f u t u r e ,  

And upon what grounds do you base t h a t  opinion? 

Only again  p r imar i ly  on the  l e n g t h  of time between the  

Those a r e  

' 3  



Q What i s  t h a t  opinion? E 

A 

i t  w i l l  cont inue a t  t h e  same l e v e l  as i t  w a s  when I s a w  him on 

December 3 0 t h  of 1980, 

Q Doctor, with reasonable  med icd  c e r t a i n t y ,  do you have ax 

opinion as t o  t h e  d i r e c t  causa l  r e l a t ionsh ip ,  i f  any, between 

I b e l i e v e  t h e  pa in  will continue, I do n o t  know whether 

the  i n c i d e n t  descr ibed  on November 3Oth, 1976, and the  cond i t iom 

with r e s p e c t  t o  which you have t e s t i f i e d ?  

A 1 do, 

Q And what are the  grounds f o r  t h a t  opinion? 

A History,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  mechanism o f  i n j u r y ,  which i s  t o  

say what happened t o  him a t  the  time of the i n j u r y ,  Secondly, 

and very important ,  what d i d  he stay he f e l t  l i k e  then, and the  

day a f t e r ,  and I have t h a t  down what he sa id .  

said i s  the  way he f e l t  the  d a y  a f t e r  the i n j u r y ,  and then,  a l s o  

the  phys ica l  examination and the  o ther  s t u d i e s  I have done, and 

the  o the r  s t u d i e s  done by o t h e r  i n s t i t u t i o n s ,  

Q And what i s  t h a t  opinion? 

A I wrote on the  last page of my r epor t ,  "1 a m  of the  

opinion with reasonable  medical c e r t a i n t y  t h a t  the  he rn ia ted  

i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s k  L5 was the  d i r e c t  r e s u l t  of the  acc iden t  of 

November 3Oth, 1976,11 
G! Thank youI You may i n q u i r e .  

I assume what he 

TKE COURT: 
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D r ,  James Richard Nolan - C. 

Q Doctor, your  experience as an orthopedic surgeon over 

the yea r s ,  you have seen many hern ia ted  d i sks ,  have you no t?  

A Yes, sir. 

Q Is i t  fair ta say causes of a he rn ia ted  

d i s k 3  That's a falr stateme i s  i t  not?  

A Yes, siro 

Q Would you exp la in  t o  the  Jury, sir, what i s  meant by the  

degenerat ive d i s k  d i sease?  

I 

A Yes, sir, It depends 

r a d i o l o g i s t ,  an x-ray technic ian  uses  the term, he i s  see ing  t h a t  

t h e  space ns he calls i t  a space -- on the  x-ray between two 

ve r t eb rae  nay be narrowed,or he m a y  see  a r t h r i t i c  changes i n  t h e  

bones, n o t  i n  the  d i sk ,  b u t  he still c a l l s  i t  a degenerated disk.  

An or thopedic  surgeon i s  more a p t  t o  th ink  i n  t e r m  o f  

what the d i s k  t i s s u e  a c t u a l l y  i s  doing: Staying where i t  belongs 

h e r n i a t i n g  ou t  again,  so  t h a t  the  term "degenerated d i s k t t ,  we 

a l l  a r e  i n  agreement as t o  what i t  shows on x-ray, but  t h e  

r a d i o l o g i s t s  d0nt-E c a r r y  t h e i r  thinking as far as t h e  or thopedis  

G.2 '//hat causes  a d i s k  t o  degenerate? 

A Primary cause:, most common cause i s  age. 

Q Would i t  also cause a d i sk  t o  degenerate due t o  someonels 

work? For example, heavy l a b o r ,  carrying th ings  on t h e i r  

shoulders ,  p ressu re  and compression on the sp ine ,  would t h a t  causi 
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i r r i t a t i o n  and problems with t h e  -- 
A plr, Dyson, t h a t  ques t ion  has been kicked around f o r  

many decades, 

causes degenerat ion of t h e  d i sk ,  

a r e  amassing the  informat ion time is  going on. 

t he  p a t i e n t  i s  aging,  and t h a t ' s  the  f i n f c a l  f ac to r ,  

Q 
degenerat ive  d i s k  disease? 

A Not a t  all, You would expect i t  i n  a man age 40, You 

There i s  no conclusive evidence t h a t  hard work 

The problem i s  tha t  while you 

I n  o t h e r  words, 

is-anusual, Doctor, f o r  a m a n  of age 40 t o  have 

would expect  t o  be ab le  t o  see some, 

Q I n  o t h e r  tliords, d isk disease 

from aging? 

A No, degenerat ive  d i sk  c'm come from aging, 

Q 
c e r t a i n t y ,  come from t he  type of  employment, i n  your  opinion? 

Can i t  a l s o  come from t he  -- with reasonable medical 

A NO 

Q Can i t  aggravate  i t?  Can i t  aggravate the disk disease?  

A 

to .  

Q I will vrithdrasv the  question,  then. 

Too many pronouns, I don ' t  know what you are  r e f e r r i n g  

Now, i t ' s  important ,  i s  i t  not ,  Doctor, t o  ob t a in  a 

d iagnos is  from a p a t i e n t  t o  g e t  a co r r ec t  and t r u t h f u l  h i s t o r y  

from him? T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t ,  i s  i t  not?  

A 

Q 

I may no t  have understood. 

Surely,  

Would you ask t h a t  again? 

It's impor tan t  t o  g e t  a t r u t h f u l  h i s t o r y  f rom a 

26 
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p a t i e n t ,  i s  i t  nokt t o  diagnose t h e i r  problem? 

A It's he lp fu l .  

Q I t  s h e l p f u l  ? 

A Yes, i t 's  important ,  

Q 
same conclusion as t o  how an acc ident  happened o r  -- 
A 

i t  as t h e  t r u t h .  

Q 
have exaggerated t h e i r  problem? 

If someone would l i e  t o  yout you might n o t  come t o  t h e  

Depending on whether I i d e n t i f y  i t  as a l i e  or I accept  

Have you eve r  had people come i n t o  your o f f i c e  t h a t  

A Oh, yeso 

Q 
day you examlned him? 

A Cer ta in ly ,  

Q !Yould you t e l l  t he  Jury  in what respect ,  s i r ?  

A 

the  most obvious ones were t h a t  he s a i d  he couldn ' t  sit down. 

A s  a mat te r  of fact, he could have sat down, and he d i d  sit down 

l a t e r  when he g o t  i n  his car ,  

r a i s e  his arms any h igher  than 90 degrees,  

examined, he was being dressed  and undressed, two occas ions r  

That 's  enough. There were o thers .  

Q 
t i o n  on the  d a y  you examined M r *  Pinney? 

A Yeso 

Did Mr. Pinney exaggerate  his problem with you on the  

I ' m  n o t  going t o  be a b l e  t o  remember every r e s p e c t ,  but  

The second one i s  he couldn't 

on ly  he wasn't being 

A l l  right. So, i n  o t h e r  words, you d i d  n o t i c e  exaggera- 



8. There f s  evidence i n  this case, Doctor, t h a t  a f t e r  t h i s  

acc iden t  occurred,  t h a t  M2,  Hnney drove the veh ic le  from t h e  

acc iden t  scene t o  t h e  hosp i t a l .  Would you check your h i s t o r y  

and adv i se  t h e  Jury what M r .  Pinney t o l d  you with r e fe rence  t o  

who drove? 

A Indeed I cane I can check the  notes  I wrote i n  my own 

hand while he was t e l l i n  o me. Mr. Niemi drove t o  Brown 

Memorial Hospi ta l  . 
Q M r ,  Pinney t o l d  you t h a t ?  

A Sure -- I mean, yes ,  sir. 

en you were o r  p r i o r  t o  the  examination of 

Plr. Pinney when you were -- p r i o r  t o  examining Itre Finney, were 

you shown this photograph of t h e  vehic le  that he w a s  opera t ing?  

a 1 s a w  no photograph. 

THE COURT: J u s t  a minute. Now 

what photograph d i d  you show h i m ?  

bB*  DYSON: Defendant's Exhib i t  

THE WITNESS: No photographs, 

Q Did M r ,  Pinney expla in  t o  you the damage t o  t h e  r e a r  end 

o f  the  veh ic le  t h a t  he was opera t ing  a t  the time this acc ident  

occurred? 

A No, Mr. Dyson. 

Q I f  I w a s  t o  t e l l  you, Doctor, t h a t  there  w a s  l i t t l e  o r  

minimal damage t o  the  r e a r  end of the  vehicle  t h a t  M r *  Pinney 

was opera t ing ,  would you still be o f  the  same opinion? I withdrz 
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t h a t  question.  

Nowl you were supp l i ed  c e r t a i n  records# Doctor, from. the  

h o s p i t a l s  f o r  your review prior t o  the  examination of M r ,  Pinney, 

were you n o t ?  

A Well, n o t  p r i o r .  It was afterwards.  
. ,  Q A f t e r  you examined h i m ?  

A Yes, sir. 

Q So, you d i d n ' t  have t h e  b e n e f i t  of any records  a t  a l l  

before you examined h i m ?  

n He  came i n  a s t r a n g e r ,  no records,  

Q No records  a t  all? 

A (Yiitness shakes head negatively.)  

Q 
A Surely,  

Do you know a neurosurgeon by the  name of Dr .  Erasmus? 

Q Do you have an opinion with refefence t o  Dr. Erasmus's 

r e p u t a t i o n  as a neurosurgeon? 

A He 17~1s considered a very good neurosurgeon, and he moved 

out  t o  C a l i f o r n i a  r e c e n t l y ,  

Q And he vas with Dr, Hassan, was he not?  

A Noor Hassan, Yes, they were associates .  

Q Did you ever  consu l t  with D r .  Hassan, e i t h e r  by l e t t e r  

o r  personal ly ,  with re fe rence  t o  I&, Pinney? 

A No 0 

Q Were you eve r  informed of  a repor t  s e n t  by Dr, Erasmus 

t o  Dr. Ramachandran dated J u l y  27th, 1977, i n d i c a t i n g  t h a t  the  



myelogram ind2cated  no defec 

disk d i sease?  

that W, Pinney has a degenera t i  

A NO o 

MR, GAINES: Objection. 

THE COURT: Come up t o  the  

Bench. 

(Thereupon, a conference was held  at the  Bench 

out  of the  hearing of the Jury and o f f  t h e  

record , )  

THE COURT: Sus ta in  the  o b j e c t i o  

We a r e  going t o  ask counsel t o  rephrase t h a t  last  

ques t ion  

Q Dr .  Holm, i f  you had received information p 

r e p o r t  and p r i o r  t o  your examination of Mr, Pinney t h a t  a 

discogram was performed on 1'4??, Pinney, and t h a t  t h a t  discogram 

showed no defect,anc! t h a t  M r ,  Pinney had a degenerat ive d i s k  

d isease ,  and t h a t  r e p o r t  was prepared by a prominent neuro log i s t ,  

would you s t i l l  be of  the same opinion today t h a t  M r .  P inney 's  

problem i s  directly r e l a t e d  t o  the accident?  

A I m aware o f  t he  discograms, I am aware of the  r e p o r t  

you r e f e r  t o ,  

today, and my opinion i s  the  same as i t  was before.  

Q '!/hen d i d  you receive t h a t  r epor t?  

I qubted i t  i n  t h e  h i s t o r y  t h a t  I gave e a r l i e r  

A Que st i o n ?  

Q '//hen d i d  you rece ive  the  r e p o r t  t h a t  I j u s t  r e f e r r e d  t o ?  



A 

A s  t o  when it came i n ,  my s e c r e t a r y  could t e l l  you, 

had t o  r ead  i t  a f te r  I d id  the  phys ica l  examination, 

Q F i r s t  o f  all, Doctor, you are  n o t  a r a d i o l o g i s t ,  are you? 

A No, sir. 

I havenr t  any i dea  a t  a l l ,  but i t ' s  p a r t  of  this pack* 

I know I 

Q And thatrs a s p e c i a l i z e d  f i e l d  i n  i t s e l f t  $. not? 
A Yes, sir. 

Q 
and/or myelogram, i s  i t  n o t ?  

And the r a d i o l o g i s t  i s  the one t h a t  performs t h e  d i scogra  

A No, sir, 

Q General ly speaking, does the  r a d i o l o g i s t  do t h a t ?  

R No, sir, 

Q Does the n e u r o l o g i s t  do it, orthopedic surgeon? 

A This or thopedic  surgeon does his own myelogram, and I 

don ' t  do discograms, 

Q Now, as I understand, Mr, Pinney t o l d  you t h a t  his back 

problems s t a r t ed  t h e  day a f t e r  t h e  accident .  1 be l i eve  thatOs 

what your h i s t o r y  r e f l e c t s ,  i s  t h a t  co r rec t ,  Doctor? 

A E i t h e r  the  same day o r  t h e  day a f t e r ,  one of those  two, 

yes. 

Q You had a chance t o  review the h o s p i t a l  r ecords  with 

r e fe rence  t o  his h i s t o r y  and his back problem? 

n I have reviewed the  h o s p i t a l  records  which were s e n t  t o  

me. 

Q Did you see i n  the  h o s p i t a l  records  where N r ,  Pinney t o l d  
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o r  i t ' s  i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  Mre J?$nneyIs back problems s t a r t e d  

immediately a t  the time of t he  acc iden t?  

A 

Q If you would, p lease ,  

A But I can r e f e r  t o  see what we say about i t  i n  my own 

repor t .  Now, wha 

know about t h e  h o s p i t a l  record? 

Q 
I&, Pinney as t o  the  time he first not iced  pain of his low back, 

i f  there  s i n d i c a t e d ,  

A 

I ' d  have t o  review the  h o s p i t a l  record, bu t  I can r e f e r ,  

I would l i k e  t o  know, sir, on the h i s t o r y  as given by 

And vfhich h o s p i t a l  record are you 't 

Q Any one, sir, 

A Oh, heavens. 

THE: COURT: Can you d i r e c t  his 

a t t e n t i o n  now t o  some spec i  i c  record? 

Q I thought you had a l l  t h e  records,  and l e t  m e  -- I am 

handing you, sir, what has  been marked P l a i n t i f f ' s  Exhib i t  C, 

which i s  the  r e c o r d s  from Ashtabula General Hospital ,  and ask 

i f  you would t e l l  the Jury what the h i s t o r y  i n d i c a t e s  with 

re fe rence  t o  1". Pinney 's  complaints of  low back pain? 

A 

was t t h i s  40 year o l d  white male vias well u n t i l  about November 3 O t  

1976, a t  which time he was a passenger i n  a car or t ruck,  a c a r  

o r  t ruck.  

developed immediate neck pa in  and lumbosacral pa in  f o r  which he 

The h i s t o r y  t h a t  Dr. Ramachandran recorded on 3-31-77', 

h snowplow h i t  him from behind, and apparen t ly ,  he 
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"has been t r e a t e d  by Dr. ELLppert, and so  on?' More? 

Q No, t h a t ' s  f ine .  Thank- you very much. 

Now, t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  h i s t o r y  i s  i n c o n s i s t e n t  with what 

W, Pinney t o l d  you, i s  that n o t  co r rec t?  

A Not a b i t .  

MR. GAINESr Objection. 

COURT: Overruled, 

MR. GAINES: M a y  I approach the  

Bench? 

(Thereupon, a conference was held a t  t h e  Bench 
. r "  ,/ -* 

o u t  of  the  hearing of the  Jury and o f f  the  

record,)  

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen 

I know we have been i n  sess ion  now f o r  about an hour and 

fo r ty- f ive  minutes, Perhaps we ' l l  take a s h o r t  r e c e s s o  

Obviously, I know D r .  Nolan i s  busy this morning. L e t ' s  

take  a s h o r t  recess .  

approximately t e n  minutesI Keep i n  mind all the  

i n s t r u c t i o n s  the Court previously gave you. You may 

now r e t u r n  t o  the  juryroom, 

We'll t r y  t o  keep i t  l i m i t e d  t o  

(Thereupon, a r e c e s s  w a s  taken,) 

THE BAILIFF: Rise,  

THE COURT: You may be seated. 

Let the  r ecord  r e f l e c t  we a r e  ready t o  resume the 

trial o f  c i v i l  case number 68128, A l l  p a r t i e s  are presen 
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before  t h e  Court wi th  counsel. 

M r .  Gaines, t h e  Court is aware t h a t  you had the  

r e p o r t e r  read  t h a t  last quest ion,  

w a n t  t o  withdraw tha t  objacti;on? 

Am I t o  understand you 

PlRe GAIWES: I do, I mrtsunderstoi 

t h e  ques t ion ,  Your Honor, and at t h i s  juncture:, T would 

l i k e  t o  writhdraw f t .  I> donct know whether t h e  Jury  

heard t h e  quest ion,  and I th ink  I confused the  s i t u a t i o n  

a l i t t l e  b i t  by making t h e  in ter rupkion ,  

THE COURT: I will have the  

ques t ion  repeated.  

(Thereupons the  Jury was returned t o  the  

courtroom. ) 

THE COURT: Let  the  r ecord  show 

the  Jury  i s  now re tu rned  t o  t he  courtroom and a r e  present  

i n  the  ju ry  box. 

M r ,  Gaines has  withdrawn the ob jec t ion  t h a t  he 

made j u s t  p r i o r  t o  t h e  recess .  

ques t ion  t h a t  w a s  ob jec ted  to. 

Please,  r e read  the  

MR, DYSON: Withdraw the  ques t io  

TWE COURT: The ques t ion  has 

been withdrawn. 

BY ?$Re DYSON: 

(4 
Erasmus was wi th  r e fe rence  t o  M r ,  Pinney's condi t ion? 

Dr. Nolan, do you know, sir, what the  d iagnos i s  of  Dr, 
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A M a y  I look at my re ir? 

Q Surely e 

A Could. you h e l p  m e  on date ,  approximately when was t h a t ?  

Q Well, wi th  r e f e rence  t o  t h a t  question,  I am showing you 

what has  been marked as P l a i n t i f f r s  Exhibi t  E, which i s  the 

RSchmond Heights Kospi ta l ,  and I ' v e  opened t o  t h e  page where the  

d iagnos is  i s  there .  Would you read th 

M R ,  SCEARON: Which date? 

THE ~ ~ I ~ T E ~ S :  The phys i ca l  

examination done by a Michael Tome lists the  d iagnos isS  

i s  t h a t  what you want, s i r ?  

Q Yes, sir, 

A A s  a degenerat ive  lumbar disk, and t h a t  is. not Erasrnus*s 

diagnosis ,  

Q I apologize,  bu t  t h a t  i s  the  Richmond Heights record,  i s  

i t  no t?  

A I t 's  i n  t he  Richmond Heights record j  D r ,  Tome i s  the  m a n  

who wrote i t ,  

Q And, Doctor, I am handing you what has been marked as 

P l a i n t i f f ' s  Exh ib i t  U, which i s  the. Hamot Medical Center,  and I 

want t o  ask you i f  you would read the diagnosis  with r e f e rence  

t o  M r ,  P inneyts  condi t ion on t h a t  date,  p lease ,  

n Well, t h i s  d i agnos i s  i s  signed by a pa tho log i s t ,  no, 

Q Would you read  t h a t ,  pleasel, t o  the Jury. 

A All r i g h t .  To begin with, t h i s  i s  not  a d iagnos is  -- 
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Q Excuse me -- 
A I.am going t o  i d e n t i f y  what I read, o r  I am n o t  going 

t o  read i t ,  

It 's n o t  a d iagnos i s  of the  physical  examination, 

THE COURT: J u s t  a minute, now, 

I t h i n k  t h e  Doctor can c e r t a i n l y  i d e n t i f y  what r e p o r t  

t h i s  is and who made it. 

HR, DYSON: Fine , 
ME?, GAIPJES: 

TI33 COURT: 

Which one, 

There i s  no page 

MR, GALNES: Would counsel please 

i d e n t i f y  wh Itts hard t o  i d e n t i f y  because i t ' s  

a b i g  r ecord  volume, but  i t 's the  -- 
14R. SCHARON : ' / /ha t ' s  the da te ,  

PRO DYSON: I t ' s  the da te  of 

A p r i l  28, '78. 

Doctor, aga in  I a m  handing you the e x h i b i t  and ask i f  Q 
you could i d e n t i f y  f o r  the  Jury t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  page, p lease ,  

A Yes, indeed,  This i s  the pathological  r e p o r t o  This  i s  

the  r e p o r t  o f  t h e  p a t h o l o g i s t ,  The pa thologis t  s i g n s  himself He, 

and then, L a r t ,  M.D. 

Q What is his diagnos is ,  please,  

A €Us d iagnos i s  a t  the  bottom i s  degenerating c a r t i l a g i n o u s  

t i s s u e ,  and then, i n  parentheses ,"d i& mater ia l  L5S1, r i g h t  s ide"  

36 
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Q 
A Yest sir, 

Q 
his e x p e r t i s e  and exam 

A He examines it. 

Q 
d i s k  disease, does i t  no%? 

A 

A p a t h o l o g i s t  i s  a l s o  a s p e c i a l i s t ,  i s  he not ,  Doctor? 

Ee is  t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  t h a t  t akes  the  material and through 

-- and his examination shows t h a t  i t  was degenerat ive 

Well, i t ' s  a l i t t l e  hard  t o  say, sir, because h e ' s  even 

ong d i s k  down here,  

Q Well, does i t  n o t  say degenerating t i s s u e ?  

n O f  what? 

Q O f  LS and S1, does i t  say t h a t ? '  

A Tha t ' s  what i t  says, o f  L5S1, 

Q Thanlr you, and you t o l d  u s  before t h a t  degenerating 

condi t ion  o f  a d i s k  i s  caused by age t o  some degree, t h a t ' s  

c o r r e c t ,  i s n ' t  i t ,  Doctor? 

A To some degree, yes l  sir, '?t*s the most common cause" ar 

the  words 1 usedo 

Q 
I&. Pinney was con t ra ry  t o  what we read from these r e p o r t s ,  i s  

t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

And your d iagnos i s  with reference  t o  examination of 

GAITLTES Objection, i t ' s  

argumentative,  Your I-Ionor, 

THX COURT: Overruled, You m a y  
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answer t h e  ques t ion* 

THl3 WITNESS: We've read a g r e a t  

d e a l  from t h e  recordsa  

Q Can you answer t h e  quest ion,  please,  

A Yes, 1'11 answer yourquestion. It is not. 

Q You d idn ' t  say degenerative.-&& disease,  though, was his 

problem, 

Degenerative d i s k  disease is n o t  his p r o b ~ ,  
.̂_--l-ll-l_- - A 

Q That's con t ra ry  t o  the  records,  though, i s  i t  no t?  

A He has more problems than degenerative d i s k  d i sease  ,  and^ .L 

the  degenerat ion he has i s  no t  -11 causing his present  prcJblems. --- - --._z__c_- 

Q Did 14r. Pinney t e l l  you, Doctor, when he w a s  being 

tjreated by Dr, Eipper t ,  t h a t  Chewicame- a time when he had 

improvement i n  his lower back? 

and January o f  1977, 
A 

p i c t u r e  of very l i t t l e  improvement, i f  any, so  I ' m  n o t  aimre that 

when he was under E i p p e r t ' s  care  the re  was a time he f e l t  be t t e r , ,  

Q I f  you can read  t h i s ,  Doctor, I am handing you what has  

been marlred as P l a i n t i f f ' s  Exhib i t  B, from the  Cl in ic ,  and ask 

I ' m  t a l k i n g  about i n  December 

From my n o t e s  and from my report, M r .  Pinney pa in ted  a 

i f  you can read, p lease ,  sir, t h e  no tes  made by the doc to r  on 

January 17, '77. 
A 

t i t l e d .  I don ' t  know where i t  comes from. 

Q Well, I ' m  t a l k i n g  about t h i s  January 17th. Can you read  

T h i s  i s  a -- dated January the17th,  unsigned and n o t  
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Company, d i d  he tell you t h a t ?  

A 

he r e tu rned  t o  work as an i n s p e c t o r  a t  t he  E a s t  Ohio Gas Company 

f o r  another  t h r e e  o r  f o u r  weeks, 

Q Vt'ould bending and l i f t i n g  and being able  t o  do your chore 

The p a t i e n t  told me, and I repor ted  e a r l i e r  today t h a t  

39 

t h a t ?  

A 

Q Well, these are admit ted i n t o  records. These a r e  t h e  

r ecords  from t h e  Ashtabula C l i n i c b  who t r e a t e d  M r .  Pinney, and 

I can read i t #  bu t  1 have no i d e a  &ere i t 's  coming from, 

they have been admit ted i n t o  evidence. 

A Oh, this i s  a record  from the  Ashtabula C l in ic?  

Q Yes, sir. 

A Thank you. The Ashtabula Cl in ic ,  on January the  17th ,  

somebody writes "Gradual improvement, 

when he g e t s  up and dovm. 

I don' t  what t h a t  m e  m e n d  mor'e - - f t  

S t i l l  some lumbar pa in  

Reflexes w-11 and then a symbol theta. 

Q T h a t ' s  f i n e  at this poin t ,  thank you, 

Did Mr. Pinney t e l l  you, sir, t h a t  a f t e r  he rece ived  

some t rea tment  from the Eucl id  Cl in ic ,  he went back t o  work -- 
THE COURT: Now, w a i t  a minute. 

You said "Euclid Cl in ic t1 ,  

HR. DYSON: I am sorry, Your 
Honor. I apologize.  

Q A f t e r  he rece ived  some treatment from the Ashtabula 

C l in ic  t h a t  he went back t o  work f u l l  time at the E a s t  Ohio Gas 
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D r .  James Richard Nolan - ReD. 

sir, be c o n s i s t e n t ,  and L a m  t about bending and l i f t i n  

and ca r ry ing  o b j e c t s ,  be c o n s i s t e n t  with a hern ia ted  disk? Would 

you be a b l e  t o  perform your d u t i e s ?  

A Depends on your pa in  threshold, sir. 

Q Assuxhing, f o r  example, t ha t  you work f o r  fou r  o r  f i v e  

weeks W3tthout any.rnedica.2. trea ent ,  wpu3;d you think that's 

c o n s i s t e n t  with a h e r n i a t e d  d i  

A Yes* 

Q You would? 

A Yes, 

Q I n  o t h e r  words, someone could work f u l l  time, 

and car ry ing  mater ia l  and bending and l i f t i n g  without d i f f i c u l t y ,  

without any problems? 

A A superv isor ,  sir? 

Q No, no, The ques t ion  was could a man do work, could he 

do labor, cou ld  he bend and l i f t  and have a hernia ted d isk?  Coulc 

he do i t  without any d i f f i c u l t y ?  

A He could not  do i t  without d i f f i c u l t y ,  b u t  he migh t  work, 

PR. DYSON: I have no f u r t h e r  

ques t ions ,  

THE COURT: Redirect ,  &We GainesS 

REDIIIECT EUMINATION OF DR, JAMEX RICHARD NOLAN 

Q Doctor, you s a i d  you don ' t  do discograms, Why? 

A I t ' s  a persona l  choice o I have found, and a g r e a t  many 
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o r t h o p e d i s t s  have found and neurosurgeons, t h a t  they a r e  

r e l a t i v e l y  i n a c c u r a t e *  They are pa in fu l  t o  the p a t i e n t ,  and I 

j u s t  don ' t  do them, and I am i n  the same boa t  as a l o t  of o t h e r  

sugreons, and I speak f o r  t h e  neurosurgeons, Fewer and fewer 

discograms a r e  being done a c r o s s  the nat ion,  

Q What's t h e  p e? What do they do? 

A e r  seda t ion ,  t h a t t s  p%31s, t o  quiet the p a t i e n t  down, 

but  n o t  anes thes ia ,  a needle ,  long needle with l i t t l e  l o c a l  

a n e s t h e t i c  i s  placed through the  f r o n t  of the neck i n t o  the  

sk between the  c e r v i c a l  ver tebrae ,  or i n  the back, i t  would 

be ob l ique ly  f m the f lank  a l i t t l e  b i t  angled 

i n  towards t h e  di t e r  you th ink  the disk i s  i n  the  

r i g h t  p lace ,  you u roscope o r  x-ray con t ro l  t o  determine 

t h a t  i n  two p lanes ,  both looking  from the  f r o n t  and from t h e  

s i d e  t h a t  the  needle  i s  where you want i t  t o  be, and then, a f t e r  

tha t ,  you do s e v e r a l  -- one of seve ra l  th ings ,  You can i n j e c t  

sal t  water, s t e r i l e  s a l i n e ,  and i f  i t  inc reases  the  p ressu re  i n  

the re  and causes pa in ,  t h a t  m a y  be of s igni f icance ,  Then, you 

can i n j e c t  a dye, water s o l u t i o n ,  n o t  o i l ,  t h a t  shows up on 

x-ray, and you can g e t  x- rays of  i t ,  and i f  the dye stays i n s i d e  

of the  i n t e r v e r t e b r a l  d i s k ,  t h a t f s  one thing, and i f  t h e  dye 

l e a k s  out  somewhere e l s e ,  t h a t ' s  another thing, s o  i t  can be 

helpful at some times. 

Q You d i d n ' t  f i n d  i t  h e l p f u l  i n  your p rac t i ce?  

A No, sir, 
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Q 
pain  3.n his low back on t h e  following morning after t h e  day o f  

the  trauma, i s  t h a t  common o r  uncommon? 

s i g n i f i c a n c e  t o  you? 

A To me? 

Q Yes, 

A It is of s i g n i f i c a n c e ,  

Q And what s i g n i f i c a n c e  does i t  have? 

Doctor, does t h e  f a c t  that Mr, Pinney began t o  experience 

Is tha t  o f  any g r e a t  

A That he had pa in  i n  h i s  back and possibly damage, but at  

l e a s t  he had p j i n ,  

Q And i s  t h a t  c o n s i s t e n t  wi th  a herniated d i & ,  a pi thology 

involv ing  a h e r n i a t e d  disk? 

A 

Q 
morning? 

That could be one of t h e  s e v e r a l  o f  m a n y  f indings ,  

He began t o  experience this pain on the fol lowing 

A That i s  c o n s i s t e n t ,  

Q Thank you, Doctor, I arn very g r e a t f u l  t o  you. 

THE COURT: Do you have somethini 

on discogram? 

NR, DYSON: 

e i t h e r / o r ,  

Yes, o r  t h e  -- 

RECROSS-E,YflMINATIOTJ OF DR e J A T G S  RICHARD NOLAN 

BY MR, DYSON: 

a, Doctor, have you ever  been provided a r e p o r t  f rom 

Dr, Erasmus da ted  August 8 t h ,  1977? Do you know, sir, whether 
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you have o r  no t?  

A I do n o t  remember Dr. Erasmus's r e p o r t  of August 7 th ,  

I had it. 

if 

Q L e t  m e  show you t h a t  and ask i f  you have ever  seen t h a t  

before*  

A I have never  seen this report .  

MR, DYSON: L have no f u r t h e r  

quest ions.  

MR, GAINES: Mo fur ther  ques t ions  

THE COURT: 

That'll be a l l ,  

f Thereupon, t h e  witness  ex i t ed  the courtroom.) 
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I hereby c e r t i f y  t h a t  the  above and foregoing 

i s  a t r u e  and c o r r e c t  p a r t i a l  t r a n s c r i p t  of the  

testimony introduced in  the  t r i a l  of the with in  named 

cause as shown by m y  stenotype notes taken by me during 

the  t r i a l  and a t  the time the  testimony w a s  being 

introduced,  

.\.s/-r/bLL * 

T e r r i  L .  Tisch,  RPR 
0 f f i c  i a  1 Court Reporter 


